[bookmark: _GoBack]CONFIRMED MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
27 JULY 2021 9AM
VIA MS TEAMS
	  
	
	

	Chair:
	
	

	Akmal Hanuk
	AH
	Independent Member – Local Community (Committee Chair)

	Michael Imperato
	MI
	Independent Member – Legal

	Mike Jones
	MJ
	Independent Member – Trade Union

	Rhian Thomas

	RT
	Independent Member - Estates

	In Attendance

	Janice Aspinall
	JA
	Safety Representative RCN

	Rachael Daniel
	RD
	Health and Safety Advisor

	Marcia Donovan
	MD
	Head of Corporate Governance

	Stuart Egan
	SE
	Staff Safety Representative

	Nicola Foreman
	NF
	Director of Corporate Governance

	Stephen Gardener 
	SG
	Head of Estates & Facilities

	Rachel Gidman
	RG
	Executive Director of People & Culture

	Robert Warren

	RW
	Head of Health and Safety

	Secretariat
	
	

	Nathan Saunders
	NS
	Corporate Governance Officer

	Apologies
	
	

	Fiona Kinghorn
	FK
	Executive Director of Public Health

	Geoff Walsh
	GW
	Director of Estates, Capital and Facilities




	HS 21/07/001
	Welcome & Introductions 

The Committee Chair (CC) welcomed everyone to the meeting including Wendy Wright, the Deputy Head of Internal Audit who was in attendance to observe the meeting.

	Action

	HS 21/07/002
	Apologies for Absence

Members noted apologies for absence.

The Independent Member – Estates (IME) advised the committee that they would need to leave at 10am for 15 minutes but would return.

The Independent Member – Legal (IML) joined the meeting at 10am.

	

	HS 21/07/003
	Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest were noted. 

	

	HS 21/07/004
	Minutes of the Committee Meeting held on 30 March 2021

The minutes of the Committee Meeting held on 30 March 2021 were received.

The Committee resolved that:

a) The Committee approved the minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2021 as a true and accurate record.

	

	HS 21/07/005
	Action Log following the Meeting held on 5 January 2021

The action log was received and the Committee noted the actions that were on the agenda for discussion.

	

	HS 21/07/006
	Chair’s Action taken since last meeting

No Chair’s Actions were noted.

	

	HS 21/07/007
	Health & Safety Overview – Verbal Update

The Health and Safety overview verbal update was received.

The Head of Health & Safety (HHS) advised the Committee that he reported directly to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and noted that it looked like Health & Safety would now sit under the Executive Director of People and Culture (EDPC).

It was noted that support had been given from the Director of Corporate Governance (DCG) and her team around the governance of Health & Safety.

The HHD advised the Committee of actions that had been implemented since the last meeting. This included:

· A monthly dashboard report – This provided a detailed look at specific areas for each Clinical Board. It was noted that these would be widely shared across Cardiff and Vale University Health Board (CVUHB) with the intention to help identify the areas that required Health & Safety (H&S) help.
· Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) – It was noted that once enough data had been provided to the H&S Dashboard, KPIs could be compiled which would be a useful vehicle to move forward.
· It was noted that there had been a very positive response to H&S being increased across CVUHB and that the benefits had been noticeable over the past 6 months.
· The H&S Team now had their own branding and logo to improve H&S visibility. 

The HHS advised the Committee that prior to his appointment there was a manual handling link worker scheme which had now been stopped and replaced with a competency workplace assessor scheme. 

It was noted that it was similar to the link work scheme whereby it would allow staff members who had been trained to go to their Clinical Board directorates and assist with the manual handling programme.  
It was noted that in the long term, it would provide a better quality assurance for manual handling. 

The HHS advised the Committee of plans that would be implemented over the coming months which included:

· Continuing to meet with the Learning, Education and Development (LED) team to address any Electronic Staff Record (ESR) issues in the hope that they could be improved and to break down the perception that ESR was a barrier to training. 

It was noted that with the relaxation towards COVID-19 restrictions, a risk based approach had been applied to face to face training in CVUHB and that the “Did Not Attend (DNA)” fees had been reintroduced where Clinical Boards would be required to pay for staff members who did not show up for training. 

· Introducing a more structured auditing process as well as continuing the audits that were postponed in 2020 due to COVID-19.

It was noted that the following audits had been picked back up:
· ProACT Audit on manual handling equipment status.
· Environmental Audit for chemical exposure and noise.
· Ligature point Audit, particularly for Mental Health Units. It was noted that this particular audit was approximately 50% complete.

The HHS advised the Committee that the manual handling team were currently supporting several major projects around CVUHB which included:

· End of life care in the community.
· Day surgery theatres.
· Mortuary project. 

It was noted that the team would be involved at the start of the projects rather than at the end to put things in place.

The HHS advised the Committee that Albacmat training had been completed.

It was noted that bariatric patients had been identified as a manual handling concern and that the manual handling team had organised a pilot and demonstration of new specialist equipment which had been well received. 

It was noted that in relation to case management the H&S team had looked to push the obligatory responses to violence and highlighted that CVUHB were pushing the no violence against staff agenda significantly.  Reference was made to the Welsh Health Circular issued in May 2021 relating to this issue.

It was noted that in relation to DATIX, a new reporting system would be implemented in CVUHB.   This would improve the reporting and investigation process. 

The IME asked if the H&S dashboard would be brought to a future Committee meeting and asked if there were any areas that the Committee should be most concerned about.

The HHS responded that the dashboard would be brought to the next meeting and mentioned that one of the biggest issues in H&S at the moment was contractor management.  The HHS said this was being worked through and highlighted that the he had worked with the DCG, the EDPC and the Head of Estates & Facilities (HEF) as a task group to take forward recommendations.

The IME asked the DCG if, in terms of assurance framework, H&S Committee had risks as a subset to the overarching risks.

The DCG responded that H&S did not have a separate risk register but noted that the HHS was working on that with her team. It was highlighted that a separate risk register had not been done in the past, but once completed and scored appropriately, the risks that were over 20 would be added to form part of the Corporate Risk Register which would be viewed by the Board. 

The CC asked the HHS what the H&S dashboard would show initially.

The HHS responded that it would demonstrate areas of opportunity for improvement and could directly pin point areas that needed additional training.

The EDPC added that as the dashboard matured it would then enable the H&S team to triangulate it with the workforce matrix.

It was noted that the intent was that the dashboard would go to the Management Executives monthly. 

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The Health & Safety Overview was noted.

	








































































































































NS

	HS 21/07/008
	Priority Improvement Plan Update – Verbal Update

The Priority Improvement Plan update was received. 

The HHS advised the Committee that the review had been completed and was still in draft form. 

It was noted that although in draft form, the work had started before seeing the final report to get ahead.

The HHS advised the Committee that he had taken all of the priorities out of the review and would be scoring them against the CVUHB risk register as opposed to the current traffic light system.

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The Priority Improvement Plan Update was noted.

	

	HS 21/07/009
	Fire Enforcement Report 

The Fire Enforcement Report was received.

The HEF advised the Committee that he would take the report as read but wanted to highlight the four areas under the Executive Director Opinion / Key Issues which included:

· Enforcing Authority Audits/Inspections
· Fire Incidents and Unwanted Fire Signals (UwFS’s)
· Fire Risk Assessments
· Fire Safety Training.

It was noted that for that last quarter, CVUHB had seen a down turn in instances of unwanted fire signals, which was almost certainly due to COVID-19 and it was highlighted that it would not be a continuing trend as more and more people visited the various health care sites.

The HEF advised the Committee that the Fire Risk Assessments and Annual Audit currently had 8 assessments overdue and 9 ward-based assessments that had been put back due to COVID-19.
 
It was noted that there was still an issue around compliance on fire safety training and the HEF advised the Committee that the fire safety team had instigated a programme of training with the LED team which would be undertaken over the next 12 months. 

It was highlighted that Hafan y Coed had been visited by the South Wales Fire and Rescue Service (SWFRS) who had sent 2 enforcement notices:

· One on infrastructure issues
· One on policy.

It was noted that the one enforcement notice around the infrastructure had now been lifted and that the Clinical Board was working hard around the policy enforcement notice.

The HHS advised the Committee that in relation to the enforcement notice EN3/21, the SWFRS would be invited to inspect the changes made to enable closure of the enforcement notice. 

The DCG asked if there had been a timescale given upon receiving the enforcement notice and if there was a timescale for them to get that removed.

The HHS responded that a timescale had been provided and had been responded to within that timescale.

It was noted that the invite to the SWFRS to review the changes made in response to the enforcement notice would be sent out this week.

The HEF advised the Committee that there had been issues around areas such as fire doors being broken and noted that these had been rectified. However he added that it provided a challenge when areas had been damaged following the fire safety team’s inspection.

The HHS advised the Committee that the enforcement notice received around the policy had been more towards the control measures in place to control ignition sources and noted that work had been done, and, reaffirmed to patients the requirement for them to hand in ignition sources upon arrival.

It was noted that patients were offered smoking cessation sessions and also there had been 15 minute sweeps of stairwells where patients had previously been known to smoke.
Lots of good work had happened which needed to be reaffirmed with the Fire Service. 

The CC asked if the H&S team needed to send a note to all Clinical Boards once issues were flagged up in one Clinical Board.

The HHS responded that any information would be provided to the H&S Sub-Committee meetings which were held by each Clinical Board.

The CC asked if it was known how many patients smoked when attending Hafan Y Coed.

The EDPC responded that it would be an initial conversation that would be had with patients upon admission.

The HHS advised the Committee that a constant approach was required and that the current checks in place had to continue, such as checking stairwell. 

The CC asked if a formal close off of the enforcement notice could be brought to the October meeting.

The HHS responded that it would be.

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The Fire Enforcement Report was noted.

	

	HS 21/07/010
	Environmental Health Inspector Report

The Environment Health Inspector Report was received. 

The HEF advised the Committee that that environmental health visits had stopped during COVID-19, that  they had now started back up again and they had inspected 5 areas in the last quarter: 
· Central Food Processing Unit (CFPU), UHW
· Aroma Coffee Outlet – Barry Hospital
· Barry Hospital – Ward Based Catering
· Cardiff Royal Infirmary
· Teddy Bear Nursery – UHW

It was noted that the previous rating of the CFPU had been a 4 and that the newest rating was a 3, a decrease from “good” to “generally satisfactory”.

It was noted that on receipt of the reports, action plans were developed to address the issues raised and further to the initial inspection on 17th March 2021, an additional two visits to review the CFPU Product Recall Procedure and a Re-visit Inspection were undertaken on 12th April and 29th April 2021.

It was noted that the CFPU had been closed for several weeks to undertake the necessary infrastructure work and to work alongside the compliance team with the newly recruited Food Safety Manager.

The HEF advised the Committee that a large portion of the action plan had been closed out with the exception of the drains action due to more work required.

It was noted that work had been delayed with regards to  improvement to the drainage system due to COVID (for example,  external contractors having to self-isolate) 

The IME asked why the team had been unable to achieve the 10 week turn around following report issue to course of actions.

The HEF responded that it was due to lack of contractor availability and in regards to the drainage issues, the contractor had attended the facility and each time had brought the incorrect camera.

It was noted that the issues were trying to be rectified as quickly as possible.

The IME asked how the staff behavioural issues would be addressed and be sustained to remain compliant.

The HEF responded that they had hired a Food Safety Manager within the compliance team who was independent to his team.

It was noted that the Food Safety Manager had helped with documentation improvements and also carried out spot checks and swab testing to make sure that the teams were compliant.
The Staff Safety Representative (SSR) advised the Committee that he was very pleased with the ratings that had achieved a 5, but very disappointed in the CFPU’s score of 3 and highlighted that it was one of the most important areas of CVUHB.

It was noted that concerns had been raised a few years ago and the request made to have somebody “in house” to do the work of environmental officers as well as building a new CFPU somewhere that was deemed more appropriate. 

The HEF responded that the recent appointment of the Food Safety Manager would have a significant influence moving forward and noted that he had been instructed to look at where the new CFPU could be located. 

It was noted that a business case would be put together to progress this further.

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The content of the report and the achievements of those facilities with a Food Hygiene Rating of 5 was noted.

b) The failing of the CFPU to achieve an acceptable rating of 4/5 was noted.

c) The work undertaken, identified in the action plan to ensure that the facility met the standards required by the EHO was supported.

	

	HS 21/07/011
	Enforcement Agencies Report

The Enforcement Agencies Report was received. 

The HHS advised the Committee that there were 2 new issues raised relating to enforcement by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE).

· Death of Member of Staff
The HSE on behalf of the coroner contacted the Health Board on 24th February 2021 requesting information following the death of a member of staff who had tested positive for Covid-19.

It was noted that the HSE had fully investigated the event and had concluded that the death was not RIDDOR reportable as they did not consider it to be a work related exposure to coronavirus. 


· Ventilation in Clinics and Theatres
CVUHB had received communication from the HSE on the 24th May 2021 in relation to a concern that was raised with them around the ventilation in clinics.

It was noted that a response was prepared by Capital, Estates and Facilities Service Board and forwarded to the HSE by the deadline of 9th June 2021.  The HSE were provided with information in relation to:

· Air Handling Units Quarterly and Yearly Inspections and Maintenance
· Annual Validation of Critical Air Plan
· Air Conditioning Bi Annual Inspections and Maintenance

It was noted that Capital Estates and Facilities were able to demonstrate that they were being maintained correctly so that was closed out. 

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The content of the report was noted.

	

	HS 21/07/012
	Waste Management Compliance Report

The Waste Management Compliance Report was received.

The HEF provided an update to the Committee with regards to current waste management compliance within the CVUHB estate.

It was noted that the CVUHB Waste Department continued to operate at increased volumes due to the requirement of PPE across all of the estate as a result of the COVID19 pandemic. 

In addition to the increased waste, there has been a reduction in segregation as the majority of the waste was being treated as contaminated.

The CC asked if there was enough expertise within CVUHB around waste disposal or if external contractors were used.

The HEF responded that a new Waste Manager had just been appointed and that a significant difference was being made by that Manager. 

It was noted that there are external suppliers with appropriate expertise and that a tender exercise was being prepared to appoint an external Waste Consultant to review the CVUHB waste processes and to highlight areas of improvement and innovation.

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The content of the report and in particular the increase in waste and decrease in segregation was noted.

	

	HS 21/07/013
	Risk Register for Health and Safety – Verbal Update

The Risk Register for Health and Safety verbal update was received.

The HHS advised the Committee that he had taken every action and would score those under the risk register matrix. 

The CC asked for the completed Risk Register to be brought to the next Committee meeting in October.  

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The Risk Register for Health & Safety verbal update was noted.

	







NS

	HS 21/07/014
	Lone Worker Device – Verbal Update

The Lone Worker Device verbal Update was received.

The HHS advised the Committee that the work around the lone worker device had been very encouraging with a month on month improvement since February 2021.

It was noted that it was largely down to a team member in the case management team who was driving the use of lone worker devices. 

It was noted that compliance was just under 69% and it was highlighted that it was an important risk reduction measure.

The HHS advised the Committee that the current contract for the supply of lone worker devices was due to expire in July 2022 and that it was possible that compliance may drop after that point if the provider was changed.

The SSR advised the Committee that the current devices were excellent and that staff were confident in using those devices. 

He queried if the same provider be re-tendered in next years’ decision. 

The HHS responded that the tender exercise would be planned  and noted that the it would not be based on  cost alone as a number of factors would be taken into consideration such as:

· Improved technology
· Ease of use
· Cost
· Training

The IML asked if a lone worker device demonstration could be provided at a future meeting.

The CC commented that it could be beneficial for 2 companies to pitch their product to the Committee. 

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The Lone Worker Device Verbal Update was noted.

	

	HS 21/07/015
	Health and Safety Policy – Verbal Update

The Health and Safety Policy Verbal Update was received.

The HHS advised the Committee that the policy statement had been written and that the draft was complete.

It was noted that it would be brought to the Committee in October once the structure and the Responsible, Accountable, Consulted, Informed (RACI) matrix had been identified.

It was noted that it was being worked through on the back of the H&S review

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The Health and Safety Policy verbal update was noted.

	







NS

	HS 21/07/016
	Health and Safety Annual Report

The Health and Safety Annual Report was received.

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The Health and Safety Annual Report was noted.

	

	HS 21/07/017
	Committee Effectiveness Survey results 2020-2021

The Committee Effectiveness Survey results 2020-2021 were received. 

The DCG advised the Committee that the results were for noting and that the results had been reported to the Audit Committee as part of the end of year arrangements and had fed into the annual governance statement and report.

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The results of the Committee’s self-assessment Effectiveness Review for 2020-21 were noted.

	

	HS 21/07/018
	Sub Committee Minutes:

i.	Operational Health and Safety Group.

ii.	Fire Safety Group

The Health & Safety Committee resolved:

a) The Sub Committee minutes were noted.

	

	HS 21/07/019
	Items to bring to the attention of the Board/Committee

The CC asked if there was scope to identify to the Board the 2 new issues raised relating to enforcement by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE).

The HEF responded that the Fire Safety Report went to the CEO and so it would be prudent to provide an update to the Board.

The DCG advised the CC that a verbal update could be provided at the next Board meeting which would be noted in the minutes.  

	






NS

	HS 21/07/020
	Review of the Meeting

Members noted that the discussions were positive and meaningful.

	

	HS 21/07/021
	11. Date and time of next Meeting 

12 October 2021 – 9am
MS Teams
	





